
ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

The mission of Albany Unified School District is to provide excellent public education that empowers all to achieve their 
fullest potential as productive citizens.  AUSD is committed to creating comprehensive learning opportunities in a safe, 

supportive, and collaborative environment, addressing the individual needs of each student. 
REGULAR MEETING  
ALBANY CITY HALL 

1000 San Pablo Ave., Albany, CA 94706  
Tuesday, September 25, 2018 

Closed Session: 6:00 p.m. - 7:00 p.m. 
*Open Session: 7:00 p.m. - 9:10 p.m.

The public is encouraged to address the Board on any topic on the agenda.  The President will also invite the public to speak during the section 
titled “Persons to Address the Board on Matters Not on the Agenda”.  To ensure accurate information is captured in the Board meeting 

minutes, please complete the “Speaker Slip” provided on the table and hand it to the clerk when speaking. 

AGENDA  
Meeting Norms 

1. Maintain a focus on what is best for our 
students. 

2. Show respect (never dismiss/devalue others).

3. Be willing to compromise.

4. Disagree (when necessary) agreeably.

5. Make a commitment to effective deliberation,
each one listening with an open mind while others are 
allowed to express their points of view. 

6. Participate by building on the thoughts of a
fellow Board member. 

7. Make a commitment to open communication
and honesty; no surprises. 

8. Commit the time necessary to govern
effectively. 

9. Be collaborative.

10. Maintain confidentiality (which leads to the
building of trust). 

11. Look upon history as lessons learned; focus on
the present and the future.  

All meetings are videotaped. 
(To view the videos, visit www.ausdk12.org) 

I.  OPENING BUSINESS     6:00 p.m. 
A) CALL TO ORDER
B) ROLL CALL
C) IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO

AGENDA SECTION III BELOW

II. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR CLOSED SESSION
ITEMS

 General public comment on any Closed Session item will be heard. 
The Board may limit comments to no more than three (3) minutes. 

III. CLOSED SESSION 6:05 p.m. 
With Respect to Every Item of Business To Be Discussed In Closed 
Session: 

A) CONFERENCE WITH LEGAL COUNSEL - Existing
Litigation (Gov. Code section 54956.9):
● Philip Shen, et al. v Albany Unified School District
● C.E. v Albany Unified School District et. al.
● Kaidong Chen v Albany Unified School District

 B) PURSUANT TO GOV. CODE SECTION 54957.6:
CONFERENCE WITH LABOR NEGOTIATOR
(Superintendent Valerie Williams, District Representative),
REGARDING NEGOTIATIONS AS IT PERTAINS TO:
● Albany Teachers Association (ATA)

C) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION-
(Gov. Code Section 54957):
● Superintendent

Board Agenda of September 25, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Page 1 of 4  

1

http://www.ausdk12.org/


 
IV.  OPEN SESSION 7:00 p.m. 
(10 mins.) 
Depending upon completion of Closed Session items, the Board of Education intends to convene to Open 
Session at 7:00 p.m. to conduct the remainder of its meeting, reserving the right to return to Closed Session at 
any time. 
 
A)  CALL TO ORDER (Reconvene to Open Session)  
 
B)  ROLL CALL 
 
C)  PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE 
 
D)  READING OF AUSD MISSION & VISION STATEMENT 
 
E)  REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION 
 
F)  APPROVAL OF AGENDA 
 
G)  APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR  
The Consent Calendar includes routine items that may be handled with one action. Board Members may request 
any item be removed from the Consent Calendar without formal action. 
 

1) Superintendent 
a)   Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Regular Board Meeting---------------------------------------------- (pg.5) 
  

2) Human Resources 
a) Certificated Personnel Assignment Order & Classified Personnel Assignment Order------------ (pg.16) 

 
3) Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment 

a) Overnight Field Trip: Albany High School All-Choir Spring Tour  
to Anaheim, California------------------------------------------------------------------------------------- (pg.18) 

 
H) BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT REPORTS 7:10 p.m. 
(5 mins.) 
 
I)  STUDENT BOARD MEMBERS’ REPORT 7:15 p.m. 
(5 mins.) 
 
J) PERSONS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA 7:20 p.m. 
(5 mins.) 
Board practice limits each speaker to no more than three (3) minutes. The Brown Act limits Board ability to discuss or act 
on items which are not on the agenda; therefore, such items may be referred to staff for comment or for consideration on a 
future agenda. 
 
 

Board Agenda of September 25, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 4  

 

2



K) STAFF REPORTS 7:25 p.m. 
1) Superintendent

a) Update on Albany High School New Addition Construction----------------------------------------(pg.20)
(15 mins.)

2) Education Services
a) Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment Patterns---------------------------------------------------------(pg.27)

(15 mins.)

3) Student Services
a) Enrollment Update ------------------------------------------------------------------------------------------(pg.37)

(10 mins.)

L) REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 8:10 p.m. 
1) Student Services

a) Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix------------------------------------------------------------------(pg.39)
(20 mins.)

M) REVIEW AND ACTION 8:30 p.m. 
1) Business Department

a) Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan------ -----------------------------------------------------(pg.45)
(15 mins.)

b) Weekday Custodial Fee for Facility Use for Non-AUSD Users--------------------------------------(pg.52)
(5 mins.)

2) Superintendent
a) Resolution No. 2018-19-04: In Support of City of Albany Resolution Declaring

November 11 – 17 as “No Hate Week” in Albany------------------------------------------------------(pg.54)
(5 mins.)

3) Special Education
a) Master Contract Between Albany Unified School District and Discovery Academy--------------(pg.57)

(5 mins.)

4) Human Resources
a) Provisional Internship Permit-----------------------------------------------------------------------------(pg.107)

(5 mins.)

AGENDA ITEMS/MATTERS INTRODUCED BY THE BOARD 9:05 p.m. 
(5 mins.)  

Board Agenda of September 25, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 4  

3



     9:10 p.m. V. ADJOURNMENT 

The Board believes that late night meetings deter public participation, can affect the Boards decision-making ability, and 
can be a burden to staff.  Regular Board Meetings shall be adjourned by 9:30 p.m. unless extended to a specific time 
determined by a majority of the Board. 

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS 

Date Time Location 

October 9, 2018 7:00 - 9:30 p.m. Albany City Hall 

October 23, 2018 7:00 - 9:30 p.m. Albany City Hall 

November 13, 2018 7:00 - 9:30 p.m. Cornell Elementary MultiPurpose Room 

The Board of Education meeting packet is available for public inspection at: Albany Unified School District, 1200 Solano Avenue, and is 
available on the Albany Unified School District web site:  www.ausdk12.org. If you provide your name and/or address when speaking before the 
Board of Education, it may become a part of the official public record and the official minutes will be published on the Internet.  In compliance 
with the Americans with Disabilities Act (ADA), if you need special assistance to participate in this meeting, please contact the Superintendent’s 
Office at 510-558-3766.  Notification must be given forty-eight (48) hours prior to the meeting to make reasonable arrangements for accessibility 
(28 CFR 35.102.104 ADA Title II). 

Board Agenda of September 25, 2018 Regular Meeting 
Page 4 of 4  

4

http://www.ausdk12.org/


ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

MINUTES OF REGULAR MEETING  
August 14, 2018 

Albany City Hall 
1000 San Pablo Ave., Albany, CA 94706 

I.  OPENING BUSINESS 

A) CALL TO ORDER
President Black called the meeting to order at 6:00 p.m. 

B) ROLL CALL
1. Board Members Present:  President Black, Vice President Stapleton-Gray, Board Member Blanchard,

Board Member Clark, Board Member Trutane
2. Staff Members Present: Superintendent Valerie Williams

C) IDENTIFY CLOSED SESSION PURSUANT TO SECTION III BELOW

II. PUBLIC COMMENT PERIOD FOR CLOSED SESSION ITEMS .
Having no one present to address the Board, the Board adjourned to Closed Session.  

III. CLOSED SESSION: WITH RESPECT TO EVERY ITEM OF BUSINESS TO BE
DISCUSSED IN CLOSED SESSION: 

A) PUBLIC EMPLOYEE PERFORMANCE EVALUATION:
● (Gov. Code Section 54957): Superintendent

IV. OPEN SESSION (reconvened)

A) CALL TO ORDER
President Black called the meeting to order at 7:35 p.m. 

B) ROLL CALL
1. Board Members Present: President Black, Vice President Stapleton-Gray, Board Member Blanchard,

Board Member Clark, Board Member Trutane, Student Board Member Weinstein, and Student Board
Member Mallah

2. Staff Present: Superintendent Valerie Williams; Jackie Kim, Chief Business Official; Cheryl Cotton,
Director, Human Resources; and Dax Kajiwara, Director, Technology

3. Staff Excused:  Marie Williams, Director III, Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment; Carrie Nerheim,
Director I, Student Services; and Diane Marie, Director III, Special Education

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 1 of 11  

5



C) PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE

D) READING OF AUSD MISSION & VISION STATEMENT
The mission of Albany Unified School District is to provide excellent public education that empowers all to 
achieve their fullest potential as productive citizens. AUSD is committed to creating comprehensive learning 
opportunities in a safe, supportive, and collaborative environment, addressing the individual needs of each 
student. 

E) REPORT OF ACTION TAKEN IN CLOSED SESSION
President Black reported that the Board took no action in Closed Session. 

F) APPROVAL OF AGENDA
1. Changes to Agenda:  Superintendent Williams requested to pull Item:   J2e) Independent Contractor

Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc. for Environmental Review Services for the Ocean View School
Construction Project. This item is not quite ready for Board review and approval, and will be brought
back to the Board at a later date.

2. Motion:  President Black requested a motion to Approve with this change : Albany Unified School
District Board of Education Agenda for the August 14, 2018 Regular Meeting.  
Motion by Board Member Clark; seconded by Vice President Stapleton-Gray.  The motion passed 
unanimously. 

G) APPROVAL OF CONSENT CALENDAR
1) Human Resources

a) Certificated Personnel Assignment Order & Classified Personnel Assignment Order

2) Business Services
a) Independent Contractor Agreement with YMCA of the East Bay for Active Supervision

During Lunch Recess

3) Curriculum, Instruction, and Assessment
a) Adoption of Literature Novels for Albany High School
b) Adoption of Business Management Textbook for Albany High School
c) Overnight Field Trip: Albany High School to Chamber Singers Retreat in Montara, CA

4) Student Services
a) Quarterly Report on Williams Uniform Complaints

Having no discussion or comments on the Consent Calendar, President Black requested a motion.  
Motion: Vice President Stapleton-Gray moved to Approve: Consent Calendar. Seconded by Board Member 
Blanchard.  The motion passed unanimously. 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 2 of 11  

6



H) BOARD AND SUPERINTENDENT REPORT  
Superintendent Williams welcomed everyone to the 2018-19 school year, and the new Student Board Members 
Michaela Weinstein and Audrey Mallah. She also gave a shout out to all of the SEIU custodial and maintenance 
staff for all their work getting schools ready, as well as for everything they did to help the District Office move 
over the summer.  
 
Board Member Trutane reported that she chaperoned the Albany High School bands trip to Germany and 
Austria this summer for 10 days. They played in Munich, Germany; Vienna, Austria; and in Salzburg, Austria, 
where they participated in a music festival at the Salzburg Mozarteum. The musicians were fabulous and 
represented Albany very well. 
 
She also reported that on the morning of August 14th, she attended a rally in Berkeley related to AUSD Board 
of Education Resolution 2017-18-19: California Schools & Local Communities Funding Act of 2018 , which 
was passed by the AUSD Board on April 24, 2018.  The rally was a celebration of the Schools & Communities 
First initiative to modify Proposition 13 to remove the exemption for commercial property. The initiative has 
received more than enough signatures to make it onto the 2020 ballot.  
 
Since there was no Student Board Member Section on the Agenda for this meeting, President Black asked the 
new Student Board Members to introduce themselves to the Board and community.  
 
Michaela Weinstein shared that she is a junior and is beginning her third year in Leadership at Albany High. 
She grew up in Albany, is very involved in student activism at the school, and co-founded an organization that 
provides education on social issues to younger students. She looks forward to enjoying serving on the School 
Board this year.  
 
Audrey Mallah is a sophomore and in her first year in Leadership at Albany High.  She’s been in AUSD since 
Kindergarten, and is very excited to be part of the School Board this year.  
 
I)  PERSONS TO ADDRESS THE BOARD ON MATTERS NOT ON THE AGENDA  
A member of the community addressed the board to talk about school zone safety.  He would also like AUSD to 
raise awareness on school safety. He advocates for more paid crossing guards and school zone signs on roads 
near schools.  He mentioned that state grants may be available for the city to pay more crossing guards. 
President Black asked to agendize this for Staff to look into. Board Member Blanchard seconded the motion and 
stated that if there are resources to pay for more crossing guards, he would like to know about them. Board 
Member Clark requested a Resolution regarding this, and President Black suggested first to have Staff research 
it and bring it to the Board for future action.  
 
J)  REVIEW AND ACTION  

1) Superintendent 
a) Recognition of Albany Performing And Fine Arts Boosters As An AUSD Booster  

Organization A nd Authorization to Operate at the School  
Seth Galvarro, incorporator of the Albany Performing And Fine Arts Boosters As An AUSD Booster 
Organization, attended to answer any questions or concerns the Board may have. Members of the 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 3 of 11  

 

7

https://www.worldconcerthall.com/en/halls/salzburg_mozarteum/142/
https://schoolsandcommunitiesfirst.org/
https://schoolsandcommunitiesfirst.org/


Board expressed appreciation for all the work done by Seth and others in this group to get this 
organization going, and further recognized Seth (also President of the Albany Athletic Boosters) for 
his service to the community.  

 
Motion: President Black requested a motion to Approve: Recognition of Albany Performing And 
Fine Arts Boosters As An AUSD Booster Organization And Authorization to Operate at the School 
by Board Motion by Board Member Trutane; s econded by: Board Member Blanchard. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

2) Business Department  
a) Budget Advisory Committee  

Superintendent Williams presented information on the Budget Advisory Committee to the Board and 
ran through some of the history leading up to this committee, as stated in the backup document. Per 
the Maddy Act, we need to post for membership of this committee for 10 business days. The posting 
for the committee will go on the AUSD website and will be sent out to the community using our 
Concentric Circles.  

Board Member Blanchard stated that the purpose of the committee should be changed because Staff 
and Board members should not be asking staff/members of the committee for recommendations on 
what to cut from the budget. He added that it is the Board’s job to approve the budget, and the 
budget should reflect the priorities that the Board has established.  

Board Member Trutane stated that she also would like the purpose of the committee to change. She 
would like the committee to provide more of an analysis on the impact of possible budget cuts. The 
Board discussed examples of the types of options/categories that the committee could consider.  

Members of the community addressed the board requesting more community input, and asked for 
more opportunities to have conversations about the community’s values and trade-offs regarding the 
budget, and asked for more time in which to do so.  

Board Member Clark commented that the Board needs to hear what is important to people and to 
prioritize accordingly. The committee can help with this, and given the short timeframe, it is 
important to make this committee as effective as possible.  

Vice President Stapleton-Gray commented that there are many opportunities for input from the 
community, and that Board meetings are not the only venue for these types of conversations. Board 
Member Blanchard also pointed out that since this is a Board-appointed committee, all meetings will 
be open to the public and allow for public comments, participation, and dialogue. It was also 
clarified that agendas for committee meetings will posted 72 hours in advance, per the Brown Act, 
and information may go out to the public via e-trees, websites, and emails. The Superintendent will 
not be a voting member; her attendance will not count toward a quorum.  

Seth Galvarro, Albany parent and community member, proposed creating potential revenue sources 
for the District, including a parcel tax for the 4,000 parcels in the City of Albany, and other avenues 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 4 of 11  

 

8



such as SchoolCare or Albany Education Fund. President Black stated that he agreed the District and 
Board definitely need to be considering revenue sources in addition to cuts. 

The Board discussed and agreed upon the following language change within the DETAILS section 
of Budget Advisory Committee:   

2.  Purpose of the committee:  Identify potential expenditure reductions to meet the 
School Board’s goal to balance the budget and evaluate consequences (pros and cons) 
associated with each. Advise the Board on areas of the budget to be reduced to meet the 
Board’s goal to balance the budget.   

 
Motion: Board Member Blanchard made a motion to Approve: Budget Advisory Committee  with 
the modified purpose of the committee as stated above.  The motion was seconded by Board Member 
Trutane. The motion passed unanimously.  

b) Independent Contractor Agreement with CAS Inspections, Inc. for Inspector of Record Services 
for the Albany High School Addition Project 
Superintendent Williams stated that for a point of clarification, the Albany High School Addition 
Project will be referred to as the “New Addition,” whereas the Albany Middle School Project will be 
referred to as the Albany Middle School Annex.” 

Board Member Blanchard requested that Superintendent Williams read some of the Board questions 
that were submitted to Staff prior to the board meeting, for the public record.  

Q1: Have we used CAS Inspections, Inc. previously?  
A1:  Yes, AUSD has been using CAS since 2008 on most of its construction projects.  

Q2: Why did we chose CAS?  
A2: We are recommending CAS because they have been instrumental in helping AUSD repair its 
relationship with the Division of State Architect (DSA).  DSA has to approve (or veto) the 
inspector selected by the District, and DSA prefers the District work with an inspector that has 
history with the District and DSA and has a good performance record from DSA’s perspective. 
This inspector of record has a good reputation, AUSD has significantly improved their 
relationship with DSA over the last 4-5 years.  

President Black provided a bit of history between CAS and Albany Unified School District. In the 
past, the District did some work without going through the proper DSA channels.  When DSA 
learned about it, they were less than happy and lost trust in the District. This work with CAS 
Inspections has been instrumental in helping AUSD repair its relationship with the DSA.  

Q3: Are these reasonable contract amounts? What are the dates of service?  
A3:  Yes, this is a reasonable contract amount.  The proposed fee is based on full-time inspection 
(required by DSA) and an hourly rate, which is a competitive hourly rate for this type of work. 
Pricing is based on 12 months of construction where the Inspector of Record will be full time 
plus additional hours to cover some part time months.  Further, the contract dates were written 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 5 of 11  

 

9



for the main construction period.  The additional time, which may not be required, would make 
this more like 15 months. In the end, the service period will be between 12 and 15 months.  

President Black and Superintendent Williams pointed out that the money for this project is coming 
from Measure B: a bond measure passed a couple of  years ago.  All of the money in the bond must 
be spent on construction projects listed in the Bond language (all construction projects). By law, that 
money cannot be used for day-to-day operations or salaries.  

Motion: Board Member Trutane moved to Approve: Independent Contractor Agreement with CAS 
Inspections, Inc. for Inspector of Record Services for the Albany High School Addition Project. 
Seconded by Vice President Stapleton Gray. The motion passed unanimously.  

c) Independent Contractor Agreement with Ninyo & Moore for Geotechnical, Materials Testing, and 
Special Testing Services for the Albany High School Addition Project  
Superintendent Williams stated that these services are required by Department of State Architect 
(DSA).  She clarified the language  “Albany High School New Classroom Building” means “Albany 
High School New Addition” and will be referred to in this manner going forward.  She also added 
that the contract (and contract template) has some grammatical and spelling errors that will be 
cleaned up and corrected.  

Student Board Member Mallah asked about student traffic flow on campus during construction.  
Superintendent Williams stated that the Project Manager and his team have been working with 
Principal Ritchie on the flow of traffic for students, as well as on evacuation routes in the event of a 
fire drill or emergency.  Some areas on campus will not be as free-flowing as usual during 
construction, but they do have plans in place.  

Board Member Blanchard elaborated more and explained some specifics that will be shown by the 
contractor at a board meeting soon. The flow through the main campus entry is open, and the 
pathway that extends toward the Gen7 classrooms and wraps around to the Albany Pool is all open 
for students. Some areas that will be closed for work during construction include the doors from the 
lobby near the gym, and the alley between the gym and Memorial Park. Construction is scheduled to 
be completed 1 year from now, so these places will be blocked off until then.  

Having no further questions or comments, President Black requested a motion on this item. 

Motion: Board Member Clark moved to Approve: Independent Contractor Agreement with Ninyo & 
Moore for Geotechnical, Materials Testing, and Special Testing Service. Seconded by Board 
Member Trutane. The motion passed unanimously.  

d) Purchase of Equipment and Programming Services from Ojo Technology for A Security Camera 
System and Access Control System for the Albany Middle School Annex Project  
Superintendent Williams turned this over to Jackie Kim, Chief Business Official, to present to the 
Board. Jackie Kim reported to the Board that this contract will be funded by Bond Measure E.  
The contract agreement has been revised to include the AUSD’s indemnification clause, our 
non-discrimination clause, and a new date of August 13, 2018. 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 6 of 11  

 

10



Board Member Trutane stated that she knew of a local vendor who had previously met with Allan 
Garde, former Chief Business Official, regarding this project. Board Member Trutane asked if this 
contract could be tabled until this local vendor has an opportunity to put in a bid for this.  

Superintendent Williams stated that she had no knowledge of the vendor submitting a bid, and asked 
Project Manager, Juan Barroso, to provide his opinion on the timing of the project if it was tabled.  

Juan Barroso clarified that he was not in the meeting that Mr. Garde had with the vendor. He stated 
that timing is a critical item at this point to continue progress in the project. A delay could have an 
impact on the contract completion date for the project, which in turn would give reason for the 
contractor to ask for more money. 

Board members discussed the competitive bidding and selection process. Juan described the 
purchase of equipment and services for this project are under the “California Multiple Award 
System” (CMAS) which is an option for local agencies. He explained that the state has components 
(like these IT and other types of components) on a competitive bid list wherein these items have 
been bid to the state. Districts can view the state’s published bid list and select the system, and 
manufacturer, the components wanted at a pre-approved competitive bid and purchase through an 
expedited process. There are many vendors available on this CMAS System.  Juan stated that this 
local vendor may work with this type of CMAS system, but Board Members did not know if this 
vendor was on the CMAS list or not.  

Board Member Trutane moved to table the item and bring it back. Board Member Blanchard 
seconded the motion but added that the Board follow the process of following the CMAS list. He 
also requested information on why this particular company was selected. 

Dax Kajiwara, Director of Technology, reported that Ojo was selected because they have worked 
with them in the past on the video security system at the high school, and were pl eased with their 
work. Part of the idea to integrate the system at the Albany Middle School Annex with the existing 
video system at the high school, and Ojo can do that since they have expertise since they installed 
the previous system.  Ojo has also been very generous with their time working on specs, design, 
educating us on access-control system, even without a contract. NAVCO did not have the expertise 
that AUSD needed, and the system that they recommended included cloud-based subscription model 
services; since this project may be bond-funded, Albany wanted to go with a vendor that could 
capture as much of the expenses up front instead of having ongoing expenses. 

Board Member Trutane requested that the Board move on from this item without voting on it, and 
come back to it later so that she would have some time to think about it.  

Ross Stapleton-Gray stated that Ojo was one of the donors to the B&E fund-campaign, but it was a 
$500 donation, and that while existing vendors, builders, etc., had all kicked into the B&E 
Campaign, he did not feel that a donation in that amount would sway the District to sift through 
potential bidders. He added that he wants to adhere to what processes we have for posting things, 
following state guidelines, selecting things.  
 
Motion: President Black requested a vote on the motion, per Member Trutane, to Table this item 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 7 of 11  

 

11



and bring it back at the end of the agenda . Seconded by Board Member Blanchard. The motion 
passed unanimously.  

e) Independent Contractor Agreement with Rincon Consultants, Inc. for Environmental Review 
Services for the Ocean View School Construction Project  
This item was pulled from the agenda as there was a calculation error and did not put in the proposal 
a column that is needed. We are also going to try to get them to reduce the cost. It will be brought 
back to the next meeting.  

f) Independent Contractor Agreement with A3GEO for Geotechnical Engineering Services for the 
Ocean View School Construction Project 
Chief Business Official, Jackie Kim, presented this to the Board.   The expected timeframe is August 
2018 to June 2021, and it will be funded through Bond Measure B fund in the amount of $15,000. 
Superintendent Williams reported that CGS means “California Geological Survey.” The long range 
of dates is necessary because A3GEO will have to provide reports and certifications when 
construction is complete. Rates can be updated yearly.  
 
Having no questions or comments, President Black requested a motion on this item. 

Motion: Board Member Blanchard moved to Approve: Independent Contractor Agreement with 
A3GEO for Geotechnical Engineering Services for the Ocean View School Construction Project. 
Seconded by Vice President Stapleton-Gray. The motion passed unanimously. 

g) Independent Contractor Agreement with Kister, Savio & Rei, Inc. for Topographic and  
Underground Utility Survey Services for the Ocean View School Construction Project  
Chief Business Official, Jackie Kim, presented this to the Board. The expected timeframe is August 
2018 to June 2021, and will be funded through Bond Measure B fund in the amount of $15,000.  
 
Having no questions or comments, President Black requested a motion on this item. 

Motion: Board Member Trutane moved to Accept: Independent Contractor Agreement with Kister, 
Savio & Rei, Inc. for Topographic and Underground Utility Survey Services for the Ocean View 
School Construction Project. S econded by Board Member Blanchard. The motion passed 
unanimously. 

h) Amendment to Agreement with Derivi Castellanos Architects to Provide Program Management 
Services for Ocean View Elementary School Renovation/Rebuild 
Superintendent Williams stated that the Backup for this item includes information about the work 
that Juan Barroso and his team have been doing for Albany Unified to meet the specifications and 
timelines as requested by Staff. The scope of services is through August 2021.  

Superintendent Williams addressed a question submitted prior to the meeting from the Board 
regarding the cost effectiveness of hiring a construction project manager as part of our staff for these 
years with all of our building programs.  She stated that hiring a construction project manager would 
include negotiating a salary and including the cost of benefits which we provide to all AUSD 
employees. Hiring a construction project manager through DCA provides a team of employees with 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 8 of 11  

 

12



different levels of expertise.  Juan has a team that can work on various aspects of projects that 
require different levels of expertise. DCA is also paid only for work that is actually done by their 
staff. For example, there are times when we need fewer people to work on a project and times when 
more people are needed.  To find one well-qualified AUSD staff person to do the scope of work that 
requires several people with varying types of expertise would have been very difficult. Therefore, a 
team approach was more efficient and cost effective.  

Board Member Blanchard commented that the reason DSA was unhappy with us in the past is 
because we didn’t close out projects properly and certify them. Therefore, he was happy to see  
Item #16 on this contract: to facilitate punch list, close out DSA certification, and final 
acceptance of the project.  

Vice President Stapleton-Gray noted that this item and the next item are addressing construction at 
Ocean View, which is still To be determined, and as a Board member, he has not received any 
information yet on the plan (i.e. what to do, what the site will look like compared to how it is now), 
so he is taking it on faith that the people involved in that will deliver something that will be within 
our budget and they will make wise choices. For the record, his vote on this item and the next item 
are contingent on good will and confidence in Board Members serving in that role.  

Board Member Blanchard answered this as he and Board Member Trutane have been part of this 
process. He reported that the focus has been on modifying the design that has been seen to be one 
that can be built within the $29 Million guaranteed maximum price (GMP), and they are now close 
enough that they are almost done with the schematic design phase. They will be ready to go out to 
the design-build teams, but should expect them to provide some different approaches. They are 
wanting 34 classrooms and some support spaces, with a concept of what it should look like, 
including a concept to preserve the Multi-Purpose room and the 5th grade wing, which could be 
repurposed as District office space. But it depends on what the design-build teams tell us they can 
build within the $29M GMP. Otherwise, the process has been moving along.  The next Design 
Committee meeting is August 23, at which time they will look at the final design and progress from 
there. 

Board Member Trutane added that their process is very robust. When the Ocean View Design Team 
first met, no one knew what the budget was going to be, and what was developed was educationally 
sound. Now they need to get both things within the stated budget because we must have enough 
money left to finish all 4 of our projects and to rebuild and renovate Marin. They have asked 
architect to include space to bring the district office back to Albany. She assured the Board that they 
are looking at the costs and how to get every dollar out of it that we can, and this may mean fusing 
buildings into wings to cut down on construction costs.  

K) NEED TO EXTEND MEETING  
President Black stated that they needed to extend the Meeting. Board Member Clark moved to Extend the 
meeting 15 minutes until 9:10 p.m . Seconded by Board Member Trutane. The motion passed unanimously.   
 
L)  REVIEW AND ACTION (resumed)  

2) Business Department  

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 9 of 11  

 

13



h) Amendment to Agreement with Derivi Castellanos Architects to Provide Program Management
Services for Ocean View Elementary School Renovation/Rebuild (Continued)
Superintendent Williams commented regarding trust and confidence in this contract and stated she
has a tremendous amount of confidence and trust in Juan Barroso and the work that he is doing for
Albany.

Having no further comments or questions, President Black requested a motion on this item. 

Motion: Board Member Blanchard moved to Approve:  Amendment to Agreement with Derivi 
Castellanos Architects to Provide Program Management Services for Ocean View Elementary 
School Renovation/Rebuild. Seconded by Board Member Clark. The motion passed unanimously. 

i) Amendment to Agreement with HY Architects to Provide Architectural Services for the Ocean
View School Construction Project
President Black stated that, for clarification, HY Architects has been working on the Ocean View
Construction project. The original plan was a “wishlist” plan, and now we are asking them to go
back and provide us a “bridging architecture” which is not the final design, but one that will be given
to the design-build entity. The design team will use this to determine what their final design needs to
include, and they will be free to include improvements that may work better and cost less than the 
bridging document design. 

Board Member Blanchard commented that this amendment of $51,000 is a fair amendment for the 
additional work they are doing.  It should also be said that because this is being done as a 
“design-build,” we are also deleting the “design development” scope of services, which is 
approximately $200,000.  This will get spent later by design teams, but it will not get spent by HY 
Architects.  

Board Member Trutane commented on how it can be challenging for some of the architects to sift 
through the robust conversations of the design committees and really listen to and hear the critical 
points, and act on them. She looks forward to working with the next group of design-build teams and 
using this process again as they work at Marin.  

Motion: Board Member Blanchard moved to Approve: Amendment to Agreement with HY 
Architects to Provide Architectural Services for the Ocean View School Construction Project. 
Seconded by Board Member Trutane. The motion passed unanimously.  

*d) Purchase of Equipment and Programming Services from Ojo Technology for A Security Camera 
System and Access Control System for the Albany Middle School Annex Project 
* The Board returned to this item for action. Board Member Trutane stated that she searched and
could not verify that the local vendor, NAVCO,  is approved under the CMAS process. Therefore, 
she will respect what Board members said about using that process and utilize those vendors to 
ensure we get a guaranteed bid. Therefore, she withdrew her request to table the item to the next 
regular meeting. 

Motion: Board Member Clark moved to Approve: Purchase of Equipment and Programming 
Services from Ojo Technology for A Security Camera System and Access Control System for the 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 10 of 11  

14



Albany Middle School Annex Project. Seconded by Board Member Blanchard. The motion passed 
unanimously.  

AGENDA ITEMS/MATTERS INTRODUCED BY THE BOARD
● School Zone Speed Limits and State grant for 10 crossing guards: Superintendent Williams will

reach out to the City Manager regarding these.
● Board Self-evaluations: Possibly in October, or as part of the Board Retreat
● Annual Board District Goals: It was decided to wait until new Board in January
● BOE Retreat on September 15: Superintendent Williams requested assistance from the Board to plan

this. Board Member Trutane and Vice President Stapleton-Gray will discuss. Board Member Blanchard
suggested Student Board members will work with the Superintendent.

V.  ADJOURNMENT
The Board adjourned the meeting at 9:08 p.m. 

FUTURE BOARD MEETINGS 

Date Time Location 

August 28, 2018 7:00 – 9:30 p.m. Albany City Hall 

September 11, 2018 *7:30 – 9:30 p.m. Albany City Hall 

Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Board of Education Regular Meeting 
Page 11 of 11  

15



Personnel Assignment Order: Pending Approval
BOE Meeting:  9/25/2018

Class: Certificated
Category: New Hire

Position Name Site FTE/Amt Effec Date End Date Action Funding
Teacher Sagna, Marilyn CO, MA 0.75 8/24/2018 9/11/2018 Approve GF
Category: Separation of Service

Position Name Site FTE/Amt Effec Date End Date Action Funding
Teacher Prowell, Sam MA 1.00 6/15/2018 Approve

Teacher Sagna, Marilyn CO, MA 0.75 9/12/2018 Approve

Class: Classified
Category: New Hire

Position Name Site FTE/Amt Effec Date End Date Action Funding
Café I Substitute Clark, Sheena AHS $11.36/hour 8/24/2018 Approve CK

Coach, Assistant Cross Country Bruckmann-Harmon, Loree AMS 0.04 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, 7th/8th Grade Flag Football Owens, Demaur AMS $2,052.00 18-19 Season Approve Athl Boosters

Coach, Freshman Volleyball Johnson, Magnolia AHS $1,669.40 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, 6th Grade Girls Volleyball Kim, Brian AMS $2,052.00 18-19 Season Approve Athl Boosters

Coach, 7th Grade Girls Volleyball Rhea, Fiona AMS 0.047 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, 8th Grade Girls Volleyball Theriault, Renee AMS 0.047 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, Girls Head Varsity Golf Ting, Andrew AHS $3,387.97 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, Head Varsity Girls Tennis Breland, Taylor AHS $387.97 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, Head Varsity Girls Tennis Mapumulo, Peace AHS $3,000.00 18-19 Season Approve GF

Coach, Varsity Girls Water Polo Salcedo, Jesus AMS $3,387.97 18-19 Season Approve Athl Boosters

Mental Health Intern Bastacky, Leah MA $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Chow, Brittan DO $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Datz-Greenberg, Corey OV $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2018 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Millen, David OV $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Neglia, Noelle CO $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Pantoni, Marjorie CO $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Mental Health Intern Weber, Terri MA $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

16



Mental Health Intern Zhang, Ying ACC $1,000.00 9/6/2018 6/14/2019 Approve GF

Para-educator: Special Education Puniani, Rhiya DO 0.667 8/28/2018 Approve SE

Para-educator: World Languages Liu, Wen Yan ACC 0.6 9/14/2018 Approve ACC

Yard Aide McCain, Kelly CO 0.25 8/28/2018 Approve GF
Category: Separation of Service

Position Name Site FTE/Amt Effec Date End Date Action Funding
Yard Aide Azevedo, Amanda CO 0.25 6/15/2018 Approve

17



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 11, 2018 

ITEM: OVERNIGHT FIELD TRIP: ALBANY HIGH SCHOOL 
ALL-CHOIR SPRING TOUR TO ANAHEIM,  CALIFORNIA 

PREPARED BY: MARIE WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR III -- 
CURRICULUM, INSTRUCTION, AND ASSESSMENT 

TYPE OF ITEM: CONSENT 

PURPOSE:  
All field trips and excursions that occur overnight require prior approval from the Board of 
Education. Requests shall be presented to the Board of Education at least one month in advance 
of departure unless the timing of the event and the Board meeting schedule do not provide 
sufficient time for prior approval or make prior approval impractical. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The Albany High School Vocal Music Department has made a tradition over the last few years 
of attending a multi-day, all-choir tour in Anaheim, California, that provides a rich opportunity 
for music students to perform music outside of the school setting, experience music-making on 
the road, move to the next level in ensemble performance, and continue to promote spirit, 
history, and leadership as representatives of AHS and the greater Albany community.  

DATES OF TRIP:  April 4 - 7, 2019 

DETAILS:   
Students in Albany High School who are members of the Treble Chamber, Bass Chamber, and 
Chamber Singers choirs will travel by chartered bus to Anaheim, California. While traveling, 
students and chaperones sleep on the chartered buses, and upon arrival in Anaheim they will stay 
at the Clarion Hotel in Anaheim for three (3 nights). Students develop team spirit and ensemble 
cohesion through this overnight field trip experience. They will learn techniques and vocal 
development from choral directors from schools such as University of Southern California, 
Chapman University, California State University Fullerton, and California State University Long 
Beach. Students will also participate in choral exchanges where they will sing for, and listen to, 
peer groups from high schools in Southern California. They will attend local musical 
performances, an all-student beach bonfire and music-making event, and spend a day at 
Universal Studios and Universal City Walk. 

18



STRATEGIC GOALS ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1 : Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a 
comprehensive educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, 
and academic growth so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional 
growth of all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify 
individual socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate 
interventions. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
The total field trip fee per student is $385.00. Funding will come from fees from families and 
from the Albany Music Fund (if needed). No student will be denied the opportunity to 
participate.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve the Overnight Field Trip: Albany High School All-Choir 
Spring Tour to Anaheim, California. 

19



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: UPDATE ON ALBANY HIGH SCHOOL NEW ADDITION 
CONSTRUCTION 

PREPARED BY: VAL WILLIAMS, SUPERINTENDENT 

TYPE OF ITEM: STAFF REPORT 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE: for the Board of Education to receive the update on the Albany High School New Addition 
construction project. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  At the February 27, 2018 Board of Education meeting, the Board 
approved the contract with Alten Construction for the Albany High School New Addition. Staff will 
update the Board on the proposed timeline, the California Geological Survey report, and the revised 
timeline due to delays.  

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1 : Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a comprehensive 
educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, and academic growth 
so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional growth of 
all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify individual 
socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate interventions. 

Objective #3 : Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION:  The Board of Education receive the update on the Albany High School New 
Addition construction project 

20



ALBANY HIGH SCHOOL
NEW ADDITION 

CONSTRUCTION PROJECT
STAFF UPDATE

SEPTEMBER 25, 2018

21



HISTORY

• Design Phase:

• Bridging Documents:

• Builder/Architect Team Chosen

• DSA Submittal

• Geotechnical Study

• Demolition – Summer 2018

22



ORIGINAL  TIMELINE

• Demolition of Amphitheater – Summer, 2018  Completed

• Geotechnical Study – [May 18, 2016] Completed

• Submittal of Construction Documents to DSA – [July 13,  2018]  Completed

• DSA Approval – Early September, 2018 -- Delayed 3 months

• Begin Construction – [September 4, 2018] -- Delayed - Possibly until January 2019

• Project Completion – August 6, 2019 -- Delayed - Possibly until December 2019

23



DIVISION OF STATE ARCHITECT

• DSA review is currently behind schedule by 3 months.  This is due to
• Slow response from DSA
• Open California Geological Survey item which has to be addressed and re-submitted to

DSA for review.

24



GEOTECHNICAL SURVEY REPORT

• Geotechnical Study submitted to CA Geological Survey (CGS) on April 25, 2018

• CGS requested additional assessment of site soils on June 11, 2018

• Additional assessment resulted in 18% increase of structural design criteria

• The building structure will have to be re-designed to meet higher criteria

• This will have cost and schedule impacts

25



REVISED TIMELINE

• DSA Approval - Pending

• Begin Construction – January 2019

• Project Completion – December  2019

26



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM:     NINTH GRADE MATHEMATICS ENROLLMENT PATTERNS 

PREPARED BY: MARIE WILLIAMS, DIRECTOR III - 
CURRICULUM, INSTRUCTION AND ASSESSMENT  

TYPE OF ITEM: STAFF REPORT 

PURPOSE:  
In accordance with AUSD Board Policy 6152.1 (Placement in Mathematics Courses), the            
purpose of this staff report is to review current year 9th grade enrollment patterns in mathematics                
courses. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Senate Bill 359 (Mathematics Placement Act of 2015) requires that governing boards, serving 
students entering grade nine, must adopt a fair, objective and transparent mathematics placement 
policy.  The adoption of this legislation  was necessary to counteract course placement practices 
that had a disproportionately negative impact on students of color. 

AUSD Board Policy 6152.1-Placement in Mathematics Courses (Appendix A), requires that a 
fair, objective, and transparent mathematics placement policy be implemented and that an annual 
review of student data related to placement and advancement in mathematics courses be 
conducted. The annual review is intended to ensure students who are qualified to progress in 
mathematics courses are not held back in a disproportionate manner on the basis of their race, 
ethnicity, gender or socioeconomic background. 

DETAILS:  
Ninth grade math enrollment data by ethnicity and gender are provided in Appendix B 
(enrollment data by gender was not reported for 2016).  In addition, a list of 9th grade 
mathematics courses and a brief description of each course is provided in Appendix C. 

Some of the ongoing efforts to remove barriers and increase access for all students include: 
● Ongoing partnership with Alameda County Office of Education to provide Social Justice

Mathematics professional development in a variety of venues: Albany Middle School and 
Albany High School participated in a joint ½ day Social Justice Mathematics professional 
development in Spring 2018; AUSD hosted a Social Justice Mathematics workshop 
during Summer 2018; AUSD teachers and site administrators are participating in the 
current ACOE Social Justice Mathematics cohort.  

● Participation in professional development around culturally responsive teaching and
cultural competence. 

● Use of online and adaptive software programs to provide extension and extra support in
elementary grades. 

27



● Allocating additional staffing for mathematics intervention courses at Albany Middle 
School and Albany High School. 

● Blending Math 1 and Math 1+ in order to increase the rigor of mathematics for all 9th 
grade students taking this class.  

● Dedicating a Math 3 Advisory section to provide  supports for 11th graders and increase 
University of California/California State University a-g coursework completion rates.  
 

 
STRATEGIC GOALS ADDRESSED:  

Objective #1 : Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a 
comprehensive educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, 
and academic growth so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  Receive the staff report on Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment 
Patterns. 
 

28



AUSD Board Policy 
Placement In Mathematics Courses 
 

BP 6152.1  
Instruction 
 
The Governing Board believes that a sound educational program must include 
the study of subjects that prepare students for admission to higher education 
and/or a fulfilling career.  
 
Pupil achievement in mathematics is important to prepare pupils for college and 
their future careers. Placement in appropriate mathematics courses is critically 
important for a pupil during his or her middle and high school years. A pupil’s 9th 
grade math course placement is a crucial crossroads for his or her future 
educational success. Misplacement in the sequence of mathematics courses 
creates a number of barriers and results in pupils being less competitive for 
college admissions, including admissions at the California State University and 
University of California. 
 
To the extent possible, district students shall be provided an opportunity to 
complete a sequence of mathematics courses recommended for admission into 
the University of California and California State University systems. In addition, 
beginning in pre-school, District students shall be counseled and encouraged to 
achieve at a high level in mathematics so that they can complete such a 
sequence. Toward that end, District staff will engage in courageous 
conversations about issues of bias to ensure that no preconceived ideas of any 
student's abilities limit the amount of help or encouragement that student 
receives. 
 
(cf. 6141.5 - Advanced Placement) 
(cf. 6142.92 - Mathematics Instruction) 
(cf. 6143 - Courses of Study) 
(cf. 6146.1 - High School Graduation Requirements) 
 
The Governing Board recognizes that there are significant gaps in opportunity 
and achievement for certain groups of students.   
 
The Governing Board recognizes that achievement gaps in mathematics 
continue to persist for students in certain racial, ethnic and socio-economic 
groups. Furthermore, there are significant inequities in student performance and 
access to opportunity based on the subjective bias that people hold towards 
certain groups of children based on race, class, gender, socio-economic 
backgrounds and other factors.   
 
The Governing Board also recognizes that the most demanding challenge that 
growing children face concerns their development of both academic 

33

29



competencies as well as the positive self-beliefs that motivate them to pursue 
lifelong learning. To foster this development, adults who take care of children 
hold the responsibility to promote a growth mindset while also proactively 
engaging children in rigorous learning opportunities.  

The Governing Board also recognizes that a child’s self-perception of their 
competencies in mathematics begins very early in life and that parents, teachers, 
and community members need to be aware of the impact that a positive 
experience can have on the long-term future of a child’s education in 
mathematics. 

(cf. 0000 – Vision) 

The Superintendent or designee shall work with district teachers, counselors, and 
administrators and the representatives of feeder schools to develop consistent 
protocols for placing students in mathematics courses offered at district high 
schools. Such placement protocols shall systematically take into consideration 
multiple objective academic measures that may include, but are not limited to, 
interim and summative assessments, placement tests that are aligned to state-
adopted content standards in mathematics, classroom assignment and grades, 
and report cards. 

(cf. 5121 - Grades/Evaluation of Student Achievement) 
(cf. 6162.5 - Student Assessment) 
(cf. 6162.51 - State Academic Achievement Tests) 

Students shall be enrolled in mathematics courses based on the placement 
protocols. No student shall repeat a mathematics course which he/she has 
successfully completed based on the district's placement protocols. 

When a student does not qualify to be enrolled in a higher level mathematics 
course based on a consideration of the objective measures specified in the 
placement protocols, he/she may nevertheless be admitted to the course based 
on the recommendation of a teacher or counselor who has personal knowledge 
of the student's academic ability and/or potential. 

The placement protocols shall specify a time within the first month of the school 
year when students shall be reevaluated to ensure that they are appropriately 
placed in mathematics courses and shall specify the criteria the district will use to 
make this determination. Any student found to be misplaced shall be promptly 
placed in the appropriate mathematics course. 

Within 10 school days of an initial placement decision or a placement decision 
upon reevaluation, a student and his/her parent/guardian who disagree with the 
placement of the student may appeal the decision to the Superintendent or 

34

30



designee. The Superintendent or designee shall decide whether or not to 
overrule the placement determination within 10 school days of receiving the 
appeal.  The decision of the Superintendent or designee shall be final. 
 
(cf. 5123 - Promotion/Acceleration/Retention) 
 
District staff shall implement the placement protocols uniformly and without 
regard to students' gender, sex, race, color, religion, religious creed, ancestry, 
national origin, ethnic group identification, age, physical or mental disability, 
sexual orientation, gender identity or expression, or genetic information; the 
perception of one or more of such characteristics’ or association with a person or 
group with one or more of these actual or perceived characteristics, or other 
subjective or discriminatory consideration in making placement decisions. 
 
(cf. 0410 - Nondiscrimination in District Programs and Activities) 
 
The Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all teachers, counselors, and 
other district staff responsible for determining students' placement in 
mathematics courses receive professional development on the placement 
protocols. Furthermore, the Superintendent or designee shall ensure that all 
teachers, counselors, and other district staff engage in courageous conversations 
about issues of equity, inequity and bias as it relates to the provision of a highly-
engaging and rigorous program of instruction. 
 
(cf. 4131 - Staff Development) 
 
Prior to the beginning of each school year, the Superintendent or designee shall 
communicate the district's commitment to providing students with the opportunity 
to complete mathematics courses recommended for college admission, including 
approved placement protocols and the appeal process, to parents/guardians, 
students, teachers, school counselors, and administrators. 
 
This policy and the district's mathematics placement protocols shall be posted on 
the district's web site.  (Education Code 51224.7) 
 
(cf. 1113 - District and School Web Sites) 
 
Annually, the Board and the Superintendent or designee shall review student 
data related to placement and advancement in the mathematics courses offered 
at district high schools to ensure that students who are qualified to progress in 
mathematics courses based on their performance on objective academic 
measures are not held back in a disproportionate manner on the basis of their 
race, ethnicity, gender, or socioeconomic background. The Board and 
Superintendent shall also consider appropriate recommendations for removing 
any identified barriers to students' access to mathematics courses, including, but 
not limited to the engagement of parents and community members around the 

35

31



issues of systemic inequities and the significant gaps in opportunity and 
achievement that exist for certain groups of students based on race, class, 
gender, socio-economic backgrounds and other factors. 
 
(cf. 0500 - Accountability) 
 
Legal Reference: 
EDUCATION CODE 
200-262.4  Prohibition of discrimination 
48070.5  Promotion and retention; required policy 
51220  Areas of study, grades 7-12 
51224.5  Completion of Algebra I or Mathematics I 
51224.7  California Mathematics Placement Act of 2015 
51225.3  High school graduation requirements 
51284  Financial literacy 
60605  State-adopted content and performance standards in core curricular 
areas 
60605.8  Common Core standards 
 
Management Resources: 
CSBA PUBLICATIONS 
Math Misplacement, Governance Brief, September 2015 
Governing to the Core, Governance Briefs 
CALIFORNIA DEPARTMENT OF EDUCATION PUBLICATIONS 
Mathematics Framework for California Public Schools: Kindergarten Through 
Grade Twelve, 2013 
California Common Core State Standards: Mathematics, January 2013 
COMMON CORE STATE STANDARDS INITIATIVE PUBLICATIONS 
Appendix A: Designing High School Mathematics Courses Based on the 
Common Core State Standards 
LAWYERS' COMMITTEE FOR CIVIL RIGHTS OF THE SAN FRANCISCO BAY 
AREA (LCCR) 
Held Back - Addressing Misplacement of 9th Grade Students in Bay Area School 
Math Classes 
WEB SITES 
CSBA: http://www.csba.org 
California Department of Education: http://www.cde.ca.gov 
Common Core State Standards Initiative: http://www.corestandards.org/math 
Lawyers' Committee for Civil Rights of the San Francisco Bay Area (LCCR): 
http://www.lccr.com 
 
 
 
Policy ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
adopted:   _______________ Albany, California 
  
 

36

32



Appendix B: 2016-2017 Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment
(Number of ninth grade students enrolled in each mathematics course by ethnicity)

2016 Math 1
Math 

Intervention 1 Math 1 Plus
Honors Math 

1/2
Honors Math 

2/3
Algebra Lab 
(SPED RSP)

Math Lab 
(SPED SDC)

Shelt Math 1 
(ELD) Totals

Race/Ethnicity
Asian Indian 4 1 3 2 10
Black or African American 15 2 4 1 1 23
Cambodian 1 1
Chinese 10 17 22 1 1 4 55
Filipino 3 1 4
Hispanic/Latino 19 1 15 3 1 4 43
Intentionally Left Blank 1 1
Japanese 1 3 1 5
Korean 1 4 5
Multiracial 5 2 1 8
Other Asian 4 9 4 3 20
Vietnamese 1 1
White 43 5 36 23 1 1 109

Totals 102 11 92 62 1 3 1 13 285

33



Appendix B: 2017-2018 Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment (as of 9.19.17)
(Number of ninth grade students enrolled in each mathematics course by gender and ethnicity)

2017 Math 1 Math 1 Plus Honors Math 1/2
Algebra/Math 

Lab

Shelt Math 1, 
Shelt Math 1+, 
Shelt Math 1/2 

(ELD)
AP Calculus 

(AB) Totals
Race/Ethnicity Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
American Indian or Alaskan Native 1 1
Asian Indian 1 2 2 2 7
Black or African American 3 4 1 8
Chinese 2 4 2 3 12 4 5 1 1 34
Filipino 2 1 3
Hispanic/Latino 7 7 6 7 1 2 30
Intentionally Left Blank 1 1
Japanese 1 1 2
Korean 2 6 1 9
Multiracial 11 6 9 13 7 6 52
Other Asian 4 4 2 10 2 2 1 2 27
Other Pacific Islander 1 1
Vietnamese 1 1 1 3
White 25 9 32 22 15 12 1 116

Totals 57 31 56 62 38 34 3 1 9 2 1 0 294

34



Appendix B: 2018-2019 Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment (as of 9.19.18)
(Number of ninth grade students enrolled in each mathematics course by gender and ethnicity)

2017 Math 1 Honors Math 1/2
Algebra/Math 

Lab

Shelt Math 1, 
Shelt Math 1+, 
Shelt Math 1/2 

(ELD) Precalculus (H) Totals
Race/Ethnicity Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female Male Female
Asian Indian 5 2 1 2 10
Black or African American 5 3 8
Chinese 6 13 8 12 2 1 42
Filipino 1 2 3
Hispanic/Latino 24 19 1 3 1 1 1 50
Intentionally Left Blank 4 1 5
Japanese 3 3
Korean 2 1 1 1 1 2 8
Multiracial 13 20 4 6 2 45
Other Asian 9 7 2 1 1 20
Other Pacific Islander 1 1
White 44 53 15 8 1 1 122

Totals 114 119 36 32 1 1 6 7 1 0 317

35



AHS 9th Grade Math Course Descriptions 

Integrated Math (IM) I: This course is based on 9th Grade CA State Standards and 
Mathematical Practices and uses the integrated mathematics model of instruction. The adopted 
core curriculum is College Prep Math.  

Honors Integrated Math 1/2:  This course is based on 9th and 10th Grade CA State Standards 
and Mathematical Practices  and uses the integrated mathematics model of instruction. The 
adopted curriculum is Mathematics Vision Project and covers the concepts in level 1 and 
approximately half of the concepts in level 2. 

Sheltered Math (ELD):  This course is based on 9th Grade CA State Standards and 
Mathematical Practices and uses the integrated mathematics model of instruction. The adopted 
core curriculum is College Prep Math. This course is supplemented with instruction that supports 
English Language Learners who need support in language development in order to access the 
curriculum.  

Precalculus: Precalculus is not a 9th grade course; however, there is one student appropriately 
enrolled in this course during the 2018-2019 school year.  Course content includes functions, 
trigonometry vectors, sequences and series, math induction, polar equations and their graphs, 
some probability and introduction to calculus.  The Standards for Mathematical Practice are 
highlighted as the basis for mathematics instruction and learning.  

Integrated Math Intervention I: This course is provided to students concurrently enrolled in 
IM I and who qualify for additional support. This course is based on the same standards and 
curriculum as IM I and incorporates lessons on study habits and strategies to increase motivation. 

Algebra Lab (SPED RSP): This is a 9th grade course based on CA State Standards. The course 
is modified to meet the needs of students who qualify for Individualized Educational Plans 
(IEPs) and is taught by a teacher with a Special Education credential. 

Math Lab (SPED SDC): This is a highly modified course using curriculum that is based on the 
needs of students with severe disabilities. 

36



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: ENROLLMENT UPDATE  

PREPARED BY: CARRIE NERHEIM, DIRECTOR, STUDENT SERVICES 

TYPE OF ITEM: STAFF REPORT 
______________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE: 
The purpose of this report is to update the Board on current enrollment. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The enrollment office verifies residencies, places students at schools, and tracks enrollment for staffing 
purposes. The new Enrollment Coordinator has created systems to track trends and changes in 
enrollment more efficiently. 

DETAILS:  
The enrollment office has been tracking enrollment weekly since March 2, and daily since August 20.  
The goal of the enrollment center is to provide accurate student counts in every grade level, as well as 
track students who leave and students who come in throughout the school year. We are creating a survey 
to find out why families leave Albany in a continuous effort to improve. The enrollment center seeks to 
provide excellent service to all who email, call, or come to the center in person. We are streamlining 
systems to make the process easier for our families. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1 : Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a comprehensive 
educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, and academic growth 
so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional growth of 
all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify individual 
socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate interventions. 

37



Objective #3 : Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION:  THE BOARD OF EDUCATION TO RECEIVE THE STAFF REPORT ON 
ENROLLMENT. 

38



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: ALBANY MIDDLE SCHOOL BEHAVIOR MATRIX 

PREPARED BY: CARRIE NERHEIM, DIRECTOR, STUDENT SERVICES 

TYPE OF ITEM: REVIEW AND DISCUSSION 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE:  
The purpose of this is to review the Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION: 
Albany Unified School District Administrative Regulation 5144 outlines a process for the development 
of site-level disciplinary rules.  In developing the guidelines, the school must solicit the participation, 
views and advice of a representative group composed of parents/guardians, teachers, site administration, 
school security personnel and students.  

Once developed, the final version of the rules “shall be adopted by a panel comprised of the principal or 
designee and a representative selected by classroom teachers employed at the school.”  

The Governing Board may review, at an open meeting, the approved school discipline rules for 
consistency with Board policy and state law.  

DETAILS:  
Albany Middle School site administration began the process of revising the school behavior matrix in 
the 2015-16 school year.  The following activities have taken place to date: 

● A Restorative Justice Committee was formed in 2015 that met monthly during the 2015-16
school year

● Created a shared vision of the matrix based on staff feedback
● Incorporated feedback from students, parents, and staff
● Published in AMS Planner for the 2018-19 school year

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #3 : Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION:  Review and Discuss the Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix 

39



AMS Behavior Matrix 
Below is our school’s behavior matrix that is used to determine consequences when harmful behavior is reported to school 
administration. When a student is involved in some form of misbehavior, a review of the incident will occur. The student’s 
previous behavioral actions will be taken into consideration when determining appropriate consequences. Parents/guardians 
will always be notified via phone or e-mail depending on the individual circumstances. 

All actions within a box will be used for each student action unless the student is unwilling to engage in the restorative 
actions. If a student is unwilling to engage in restorative practices, potentially more severe consequences may be issued. 

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 

- Minor behavioral OR first reported 
incident.  

- Moderate behavioral OR second reported 
incident. 

- Severe behavioral OR continued 
incidents.  

When specified, teachers will be notified first via e-mail and then in person to provide further details. 

For each 2 days of suspension, a student can replace 1 day with 5 hours of community service. The community service hours 
must be approved by administration and be completed within 3 weeks of the incident.  

If a student is suspended, there will be a pre-suspension conference and a reintegration conference that will include 
guardian, student, and administrator. Teachers are automatically notified of the incident and suspension. 

Behavior 1st Incident/Level 2nd Incident/Level 3rd Incident/Level 

Absences ● 1st truancy letter at 3 unexcused
absences

● 2nd truancy letter at 5 unexcused
absences

● SART meeting (Truancy
Mediation) with family, teacher
and counselor if necessary

● Teacher notification of process

● 3rd truancy letter at 7 unexcused
absences

● SARB (Truancy Mediation)
meeting at 9 unexcused
absences

● Teacher notification of results

Arson ● 5 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Restorative circles*
● Counselor referral
● 5 hrs. community service
● Police report
● Possibility of expulsion recom.

● Suspension pending expulsion
process (Ed. Code required)

● Expulsion recommended
● Guardian + student conference
● Restorative circles*
● 10 hrs. community service
● Police report

Assault/Battery/Fighting 

- Self-defense ● Guardian contact
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor follow-up

- Caused minor injury ● After-school detention
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*

● 1-2 day period suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● 1-2 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor follow-up

- Caused serious injury 
(not mutual combat) 

● 1-2 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● 2-3 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● 3-5 day suspension
● Possibility of expulsion

recommendation
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor follow-up

- Mutual combat/fighting ● 1-2 days period suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● 1-2 days in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor referral

● 1-5 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict resolution or circle*
● Counselor follow-up

- Willfully caused serious 
injury, except in self-defense 

- Physical assault/battery 

● Suspension pending expulsion
process

● Expulsion recommended
● Police report
● Guardian, student, counselor and

40



- Sexual assault – aggressive 
and unwanted sexual/intimate 
contact (Ed. Code required) 

admin conference 

Cutting Class 
(15 min +) 

- On Campus without 
permission 

● After-school detention of double
the time cut with a cap of 2

● Guardian + teacher notified

● After-school detention of double
the time cut with a cap of 2
detentions

● Guardian + student conference
● Counselor referral
● Teacher notified

● 1 day in-school suspension
● Guardian, student, teacher and

counselor conference
● Counselor follow-up
● Possible referral to SART/SARB
● Teacher notified

- Off campus/leaving without 
permission 

● Student's safety is ensured by
calling parent, contacts, and if that
fails, the police

● After-school detention of double
the time cut with a cap of 2

● Guardian + student conference
● Teacher notified

● Student's safety is ensured by
calling parent, contacts, and if that
fails, the police

● 1 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Counselor referral
● Elopement Plan Created
● Teacher notified

● Student's safety is ensured by
calling parent, contacts, and if
that fails, the police

● 2 day in-school suspension
● Guardian, student, teacher, and

counselor conference
● Counselor follow-up
● Possible referral to SART/SARB
● Elopement Plan Evaluated
● Teacher notified

Defiance or Disruption 

- Minor: Student does not 
follow repeated directions or 
requests from staff; action 
momentarily interrupts 
instruction, event or program 

● 30 minutes of restorative work
● Guardian contact

● 60 minutes of restorative work
● 1-2 period suspension possible
● Restorative conference with

student, teacher, and admin
● Guardian contact

● 90 minutes of restorative work
● 2-3 period suspension
● Restorative conference with

student, guardian, teacher, and
admin

● Counselor referral

- Major or repetitive: Student 
does not follow repeated 
directions or requests from 
staff; action interrupts or 
stops instruction, event or 
program; administrator or 
supervisor support required 

● After-school detention
● 1 day class suspension
● Restorative circle*
● Guardian + student conference

● 1-2 period suspension
● Restorative circle*
● Guardian + student reintegration

conference
● Counselor referral

● Possible 1-3 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Conflict circle*
● Counselor follow-up

Drugs and Controlled 
Substances 

- Selling, buying, distributing ● Suspension pending expulsion
process (Ed. Code required)

● Expulsion recommended
● Police report
● Guardian, student, counselor and

admin conference

- Possession ● 1 day in-school suspension
(counseling embedded)

● Brief Intervention Sessions
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Restorative circle*

● 2-3 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Restorative circle*
● Counselor follow-up

● 1-5 day suspension
● Possible expulsion

recommendation
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Restorative circle*
● Counselor follow-up

- Under the influence ● 1 day in-school suspension
(counseling embedded)

● Brief Intervention Sessions
● Guardian + student conference
● Restorative circle*
● Counselor referral

● 2-3 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Restorative circle*
● Counselor follow-up
● Random bag checks possible

● 1-5 day suspension
● Possible expulsion recommended
● Guardian + student conference
● Counselor follow-up
● Random bag checks possible

Drug Paraphernalia 

- Possession ● 1 day in-school suspension
(counseling embedded)

● Brief Intervention Sessions
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Restorative circle*

● 2-3 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Restorative circle*
● Counselor follow-up
● Random bag checks possible

● 1-5 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Item turned over to police
● Counselor follow-up
● Random bag checks possible

- Sale ● 1 day in-school suspension
(counseling embedded)

● 2-3 day in-school suspension
● Guardian + student conference

● Suspension pending expulsion
process (Ed. Code required)

41



 

● Brief Intervention Sessions 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Item turned over to police 
● Restorative circle* 

● Item turned over to police 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor follow-up 

● Expulsion recommended  
● Guardian + student conference  
● Item turned over to police 

Electronics    

-Possession or use ● Device taken and logged in the 
office 

● Device taken and logged in the 
office, guardian phone call to 
release 

● 3rd -  Device taken and logged in 
office, guardian pick up 

● 4th - Device taken and logged in 
office, guardian/student/admin 
conference 

 

-Recording a fight ● 3 hours of community service 
● Reflection assignment 
● Guardian contact 

● 6 hours of community service 
● Reflection assignment 
● Guardian contact 

● 9 hours of community service 
● Reflection assignment 
● Guardian contact 

Falsifying Records ● Guardian + student conference 
● Reflective assignment 
● Warning of loss of privilege related 

to falsification/positions of trust 

● Guardian + student conference 
● Reflective assignment 
● Loss of privilege related to 

falsification/positions of trust 

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Reflective assignment 
● Loss of positions of trust 

- Falsely representing people 
or facts on school documents 

Fire Alarms ● 1-2 day in-school suspension 
● Reflective assignment 
● Restorative circle  

● 1-2 day suspension 
● Reflective assignment 
● Restorative circle 

● 3-5 day suspension 
● Reflective assignment 
● Restorative circle - Pulling 

Gambling ● After-school detention 
● Confiscation of equipment for 

guardian pick-up 
● Restorative circle 

● 1 period suspension 
● Confiscation of equipment 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle 
● Counselor referral 

● 1+ day in-school suspension 
● Confiscation of equipment 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle  
● Counselor referral 

 

Harassment & Bullying ● After-school detention 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle* 
● Educational/reflective assignment 

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle* 
● Educational/reflective assignment 
● Harassment contract 
● Counselor referral 

● 1-5 day suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle* 
● Educational/reflective assignment 
● Counselor follow-up 
● Possible schedule change 
 

 - Unwelcome comments 
[spoken, written, electronic] 
or acts, which are ongoing, 
one-sided and make the 
recipient feel powerless 
and/or creates a hostile 
environment 

Hate Acts ● See the consequence for each act 
plus any or all of the 
consequences for hate speech 

● See the consequence for each act 
plus any or all of the 
consequences for hate speech 

● See the consequence for each 
act plus any or all of the 
consequences for hate speech - Harmful action against 

someone for their real or 
perceived identify.  

Hate Speech ● Guardian contact 
● Research and written reflection 

about the specific area of hate  
● Restorative circle* 
● Make amends with group 

impacted 
● Counselor referral 

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Research and written reflection 
● Restorative circle* 
● Make amends with group 

impacted  
● Counselor referral 

● 1-5 day suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Research and written reflection 
● Restorative circle* 
● Make amends with group 

impacted  
● Counselor follow-up 

 - Slur or derogatory 
comment about one’s real or 
perceived identity. This 
includes body size, disability, 
gender, nationality, race, 
religion, or sexual orientation.  

Incendiary Devices 
(matches, lighters, etc.) 

  
 

-Possession ● 30 minutes of restorative work 
● Guardian contact 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 

● 60 minutes of restorative work 
● Guardian contact 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 
● Random bag checks in morning 

 

-Use  
(lighting something on fire) 

● 1 day suspension 
● Guardian conference 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 

● 2 day suspension 
● Guardian conference 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 

● 3 day suspension 
● Guardian conference 
● Confiscation of Item 
● Restorative circle 
● Random bag checks in morning 

Offensive Comment ● Behavior reflection form 
● Conflict resolution 
● Guardian contact 

● 30 minutes of restorative work 
● Behavior reflection form 
● Conflict resolution 
● Guardian contact 

● 60 minutes of restorative work 
● Behavior reflection form 
● Conflict resolution 
● Guardian contact 
● Counselor referral 

- Harmful or offensive 
comment that is not about a 
person’s identify.  

 

42



 

Retaliation ● See the consequence for each act 
plus any or all of the following:  

● Guardian contact 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor referral 

● See the consequence for each act 
plus any or all of the following:  

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor referral 
● Retaliation contract 

● See the consequence for each 
act plus any or all of the following: 

● 1-5 day suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor follow-up 
● Retaliation contract 

- Harming someone because 
they caused or reported harm  

Roughhousing  
(not fighting) 

● Verbal warning 
● Teacher notifies asst. principal 

● After-school detention 
● Guardian contact 
● Conflict resolution 
● Counselor referral 

● 1 + period suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution 
● Counselor follow-up  

Selling, Buying, or Trading 
Items 

● Items, or $ earned, are returned to 
original owner  

● Items confiscated for guardian 
pickup 

● Guardian contact + policy signed 

● After-school detention 
● Items, or $ earned, are returned to 

original owner  
● Items confiscated for guardian 

pickup 
● Guardian contact 

● 5 hours of community service 
● Items, or $ earned, are returned 

to original owner and guardian to 
pick up 

● Guardian + student conference 

 

Sexual Harassment ● 1 day in-school suspension 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor referral 

● 1-3 day suspension 
● Conference with student, 

guardian, and counselor 
● Restorative circle* 
● Restorative project or training 
● Counselor referral 
● Harassment contract 
 
 

● 3-5 day suspension 
● Conference with student, 

guardian, and counselor 
● Restorative circle*  
● Restorative project or training 
● Possible schedule change 
● Counselor follow-up 

- Verbal/visual (creating or 
displaying pictures, signs, 
gestures, inappropriate 
material or verbal statement) 
 
- Physical contact (of another 
in the act of harassment), 
includes pansting 
 
- Continual verbal, visual, or 
physical sexual harassment 

Tardy    

 

Theft/Possession of Stolen 
Property 

● After school detention 
● Restitution to individual(s) and 

community  
● Guardian + student conference 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor referral 
 

● 1-2 day in-school suspension 
● Restitution to individual(s) and 

community  
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police contacted if necessary 
● Restorative circle*  
● Counselor follow-up 

● 3+ day in-school suspension 
● Restitution to individual(s) and 

community  
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police contacted if necessary 
● Restorative circle* 
● Counselor follow-up 

 

Threats (student) ● 1 day suspension in or 
out-of-school 

● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Guardian + student conference  
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle*  
● Counselor referral 
● Police report possible 

● 2-3 day suspension  
● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle*  
● Counselor follow-up 
● Police report possible 
 
 

● 3-5 day suspension  
● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Expulsion recommendation 

possible 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Conflict resolution or restorative 

circle*  
● Counselor follow-up 
● Possible report possible 

- Witness intimidation using 
harassment and/or threat 
 
- Threat of death or grave 
bodily injury  

Threats (staff) ● 1-2 day suspension 
● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report  
● Restorative conference* 
● Counselor referral 
● Consider class change 
 

● 2-3 day suspension 
● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report  
● Restorative conference* 
● Counselor follow-up 
● Consider class change 
 
 

● 3-5 day suspension 
● Crisis Response Protocol 
● Expulsion recommendation 

possible 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report  
● Restorative conference* 
● Counselor follow-up 
● Consider class change 

- Threat of death or grave 
bodily injury against school 
official, or against school 
property  

Vandalism, Graffiti, 
Destruction of Property 

● 1 day in-school suspension 
● 30 minutes restorative work 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report possible 

● 2 day in-school suspension 
● 60 minutes restorative work 
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report possible 
 
 
 
 
 
 

● 3 day in-school suspension 
● 90 minutes restorative work  
● Guardian + student conference 
● Police report possible 
 
 
 
 
 
 

- Destruction or harm to 
school or personal property 
requiring clean up or resulting 
in financial loss 
 
 
 

 

43



Verbal Abuse of a Staff 
Member 

● Possible 1 day class suspension
● Restorative conference
● Restorative action

● Possible 2-3 day class or
in-school suspension

● Restorative conference including
guardian

● Restorative action
● Counselor referral

● Possible 3-5 day class or out of
school suspension

● Restorative conference including
guardian

● Restorative action
● Counselor follow-up

Weapons, Explosives, 
Dangerous Objects, 
Imitation Firearms  

- Possession of a knife or 
blade, real or imitation 

● 1-2 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Counseling referral

● 3-5 day suspension
● Guardian + student conference
● Counseling follow-up
● Possibility of expulsion

recommended

● Suspension pending expulsion
● Expulsion recommended
● Guardian + student conference
● Counseling follow-up

- Possession or use of a 
weapons, explosives, 
dangerous objects or 
imitation firearms 

- Brandishing a knife 

● Suspension pending expulsion
(Ed. Code required)

● Expulsion recommended
● Police called
● Guardian and student

conference

*Note that school staff reserve the right to shift the nature of suspensions from in-school to out of school and vice versa when
appropriate or necessary. 

*Conflict resolution – A meeting between 2-3 individuals that is mediated by an administrator, counselor or teacher using
restorative questions and “I messages.” Resolutions will only be conducted when both parties agree. 

Counseling referral – A referral to one of the school counselors will be made and counselor will determine length/duration 
of follow-up visits or interventions. Referrals to the mental health program maybe made through the counselors.  

Defiance – Minor occurrences of defiance should be handled in the classroom using the existing classroom management 
system. Requests for restorative conferences can be made without completing a behavior referral.  

*Restorative circle – A practice of restorative justice in which those impacted by an action come together using a formal
circle process to address the harm done and explore ways to move forward. Circles will only be conducted when both 
parties agree.  

Restorative conference -- A practice of restorative justice in which those impacted by an action come together in a 
conference setting to address the harm done and explore ways to move forward. 

44



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: ALBANY AQUATIC CENTER FISCAL SOLVENCY PLAN 

PREPARED BY: JACKIE KIM, CHIEF BUSINESS OFFICIAL 
AMANDA MENDIETA, AQUATIC CENTER DIRECTOR AND 
FACILITY USE COORDINATOR 

TYPE OF ITEM: REVIEW AND ACTION 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE: Approve the Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan, which includes adjustments to 
the Aquatic Center Fee Schedule and changes to the Aquatic Center Unrepresented Classified Employee 
Salary Schedule for hourly employees. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
The District's goal for the Albany Aquatic Center (AAC) is to be self-supporting. In 2017-2018, the 
Albany Aquatic Center fell short of this goal by approximately $100,000 due to major repairs, new 
equipment purchase, less classes offered due to shortage of staff, and an increase in staff benefits. The 
AAC was able to offer lessons for about 4,300 students in 2017-18 while it used to serve 5,500 students. 

DETAILS: 
As staff continues to promote classes and programs to the public, evaluate existing classes, and review 
operating hours and employee scheduling, we are proposing the following: 

1. Increase fees for classes and pool usage
2. Increase salary for hourly employees (to attract and recruit more staff so more classes can be

offered.)

Aquatic Center Fee Schedule 
The following changes to the Albany Aquatic Center Fee Schedule are being proposed and 
recommended by Staff and the current Pool Committee. The fees for drop-in swims, monthly passes, 
and 15-punch passes have not been increased since the facility opened in 2012.  Swim lesson fees have 
only been increased once by $1 per class.  Further, due to a history of minimal sales of the monthly 
swim pass, we are proposing to remove this option, As a replacement, AAC will offer an annual pass at 
the current monthly pass rates times 12. Unlike many of the other aquatic programs in the Bay Area, 
AAC offers an indoor facility, warmer water temperature in pools, warmer ambient air, and a year round 

45



program which attracts more public usage. AAC currently has a waiting list of people who want to take 
classes. 

Aquatic Center Unrepresented Classified Salary Schedule 
The pay rates in the Unrepresented Classified Salary Schedule for the Aquatic Center have only been 
increased once since the Aquatic Center opened. We are currently offering pay rates significantly below 
the average in the Bay Area.  We need to raise wages in order to attract and retain quality staff.  Lack of 
programming due to low staff is one of the direct reasons we are seeing a budget shortfall. The more 
programs we can offer; the more income we can generate.  

Attached are the following: 
● Exhibit A: Proposed Fee Schedule
● Exhibit B: Fee Comparison Chart
● Exhibit C: Proposed Aquatic Center Unrepresented Classified Employee Salary Schedule
● Exhibit D: Salary Schedule Comparison Chart
● Exhibit E: Pricing Worksheet for Swim Lessons ($33K)
● Exhibit F: Pricing Worksheet for Daily Fees and Passes ($14K)

If the Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan is approved, AAC will begin recruiting staff, creating 
additional classes, adjusting the fee schedule, and be ready for implementation on January 1, 2019. 

KEY QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS:  
Q. How much additional income do we expect to generate with this plan?  
A. We are expecting additional income of approximately $47,000 ($33K from swim lessons and $14K 
from Daily Fees and 15-Punch Pass) annually.  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  
Funding Source: Increase revenue of approximately $47,000 in General Fund 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #3: Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve the Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan which includes 
adjustments to the Aquatic Center Fee Schedule and changes to the Aquatic Center Unrepresented 
Classified Employee Salary Schedule for hourly employees. 

46



Albany Aquatic Center 
1311 Portland Ave.  
Albany, CA 94706 
(510) 559‐6640 

albanypool@ausdk12.org 
swimlessons@ausdk12.org 

Exhibit A: Proposed Fee Schedule 

Albany Aquatic Center Fee Schedule 

Effective January 1, 2019 

Daily Fees 

Drop in  Fee 

Adult (18‐64)  $7.00 

Senior (65+) / Disabled / Veteran  $5.25 

Youth (5 – 17)  $4.25 

Toddler (0‐4) /Facility Use  $3.00 

Water Fitness Class   $10.00 

Passes 

15 ‐ Punch Pass  Resident  Non‐Resident* 

Adult (18‐64)  $86.00  $99.00 

Senior (65+) / Disabled  $68.00  $78.00 

Youth (5 – 17)  $53.00  N/A 

Water Fitness Class (14‐64)   $109.00  $125.00 

Senior / Disabled Water Fitness 
Class (65+) 

$90.00  $104.00 

Annual Pass   Resident  Non‐Resident* 

Adult (18‐64)  $1008.00  $1160.00 

Senior (65+) / Disabled / Veteran  $720.00  $828.00 

Youth (5 – 17)  $672.00  N/A 

Swim Lessons (price per class) 

Type  Length (min)  Resident  Non‐Resident* 

Group   25  $13.50  $15.55 

Private   25  $33.00  $38.00 

*Non‐Resident rate is based on a 15% increase. We have used 15% since the Aquatic Center opened in

2012.  

47



Albany Aquatic Center 
1311 Portland Ave.  
Albany, CA 94706 
(510) 559‐6640 

albanypool@ausdk12.org 
swimlessons@ausdk12.org 

Exhibit B: Fee Comparison Chart 

AVG
Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res Res Non-Res

Daily
Adult 6.00$   9.00$   5.00$  10.00$ 6.00$  6.00$  7.00$   5.00$  6.25$    8.00$  $6.83 6.00$   7.00$      

Senior/Disabled 4.00$   7.00$   5.00$  10.00$ 5.25$  6.00$  $6.21 4.25$   5.25$      
Youth  4.00$   3.00$   3.00$  3.00$   1.00$  3.00$  3.00$  3.75$    3.00$  $2.97 4.00$   4.25$      

Tot/Facility 
Use/Shower

3.00$   3.00$   -$    1.00$   2.00$   2.50$    3.00$   $2.07 3.00$    3.00$       

Punch 
Pass/Swim

Adult 4.70$   5.90$    5.40$   7.20$    5.50$  4.50$  5.63$    5.00$  $5.48 5.13$   5.93$     5.75$      6.61$      
Senior 4.50$   5.75$    3.10$  $4.45 3.60$   4.13$     4.50$      5.18$      
Youth 3.50$   $3.50 3.40$   3.50$      

Tot/Facility Use n/a 2.53$    remove

Annual Pass
Adult $84/mo 1,008.00$ 1,160.00$

Senior $60/mo $720.00 828.00$   
Youth $56/mo $672.00

Water Fitness
Drop In 9.00$   12.00$ 10.00$ 9.00$   7.00$   8.00$   10.00$  8.00$   $9.13 10.00$  10.00$      

Punch 6.83$   9.08$    10.00$ 11.00$  8.00$  7.40$  8.00$  10.00$  8.00$  $8.70 5.93$   6.80$     7.25$      8.34$      
Senior Punch 

Pass
5.80$   7.42$    10.00$ 11.00$  7.00$   3.80$   8.00$   10.00$  6.00$   $7.67 6.00$       6.80$       

Lessons
Group (25 min) 10.00$ 13.00$  9.00$   10.00$  12.44$ 14.44$  12.25$ 10.80$ 11.50$  12.00$ 15.00$  8.75$   10.50$  $11.51 10.75$  12.37$    13.50$      15.55$      

Private (25 min) 28.00$ 33.00$  36.00$ 38.00$  31.00$ 36.00$  75.00$ 21.66$ 23.45$  21.00$ 26.25$  25.00$ 30.00$  $32.64 28.12$  32.50$    33.00$      38.00$      

** Annual pass includes facility closures based on 330 open days per year

Albany Proposed

Albany High School Aquatics Center
ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

*All prices listed represent averages of actual prices offered.

El Cerrito Newark Albany CurrentLap Swim/  
Rec Swim

2018 Fee Comparison Chart

Highlands SFO Rec City of OaklandEmeryville Richmond Plunge

48



Albany Aquatic Center 
1311 Portland Ave.  
Albany, CA 94706 
(510) 559‐6640 

albanypool@ausdk12.org 
swimlessons@ausdk12.org 

Exhibit C: Proposed Aquatic Center Unclassified Certified Salary Schedule 

Position  Step A  Step B  Step C  Step D 

Lifeguard/Front Desk  $15.00  $15.75  $16.75  $17.50 

Swim Instructor  $17.00  $18.25  $19.50  $21.00 

Senior Guard  $16.00  $16.75  $17.75  $18.50 

Exhibit D: Salary Schedule Comparison Chart 

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End Range
Start 

Range
End Range

Lifeguard / Front 
Desk

14.45$ 17.18$ 16.16$ 18.71$ 12.00$ 15.00$ 13.00$ 17.00$ 18.50$ 13.65$ 15.80$      15.38$ 16.58$      

Swim Instructor 16.76$ 22.14$ 16.16$ 19.67$ 12.50$ 30.00$ 15.00$ 32.00$ 20.50$ 16.32$ 17.98$      20.29$ 24.19$      
Senior Guard 17.18$ 21.12$ 16.16$ 19.64$ 15.00$ 21.00$ 17.00$ 19.00$ 17.13$ 19.84$      17.76$ 21.22$      

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Start 
Range

End 
Range

Lifeguard / Front 
Desk

14.11$ 16.97$ 12.00$ 15.00$ 15.00$ 17.50$ 

Swim Instructor 16.17$ 23.78$ 13.00$ 16.00$ 17.00$ 21.00$ 
Senior Guard 16.71$ 20.30$ 15.75$ 17.75$ 16.00$ 18.50$ 

Highlands SFO Rec Hayward

Albany Current Albany ProposedAVG

San MateoNewarkEl Cerrito Richmond Plunge

ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Albany High School Aquatics Center

Lifeguard/Swim Instructor Pay Rates

49



Albany Aquatic Center 
1311 Portland Ave.  
Albany, CA 94706 
(510) 559‐6640 

albanypool@ausdk12.org 
swimlessons@ausdk12.org 

Exhibit E: Pricing Worksheet for Swim Lessons 

Current Group Lessons (6 classes) 64.50(R)/74.25(NR)

Income number of students  Program cost Income

Tuition 4.00 64.50$     258.00$         

Expenses % of Income

Program Hours Rate

Salary 3 (30mins * 6 classes) 14.50$     43.50$     Instructor

3 (30mins * 6 classes) 13.50$     40.50$     Lifeguard

TOTAL SALARY 84.00$   
*Additional Associated Cost 40.98$    

Total Expenses 124.98$         

Net Income 133.02$         

Proposed Group Lessons (6 classes) 81(R)/93.25(NR)

Income number of students  Program cost Income

Tuition 4.00 81.00$     324.00$         

Expenses % of Income

Program Hours Rate

Salary 3 (30mins * 6 classes) 19.00$     57.00$     Instructor

3 (30mins * 6 classes) 16.25$     48.75$     Lifeguard

TOTAL SALARY 105.75$ 
Additional Associated Cost 51.50$    

Total Expenses 157.25$         

Net Income 166.75$         

Net New Income 33.73$           

Total expected increase in income (33.73 x 1,000) = 33,727.50$  

* Additional associated costs include beneftis, overhead, matrieals, equipment and utilities.

ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT

Albany High School Aquatics Center

2019 Pricing Worksheet

** Based on an average class side. Take the difference between the two net incomes and multiply by about 

1000 (we served a little more than 4300 students last year) to get an estimate of income we can expect to 

genrate. 

50



Albany Aquatic Center 
1311 Portland Ave.  
Albany, CA 94706 
(510) 559‐6640 

albanypool@ausdk12.org 
swimlessons@ausdk12.org 

Exhibit F: Pricing Worksheet for Daily Fees and Passes 

POS Revenue 7/1/17‐6/30/18 # of purchases Old Revenue New Revenue Additional Revenue

Drop In ‐ Adult 942.00               72,534.00      81,012.00        8,478.00 

Drop In ‐ Senior/Disabled/Veteran 643.00               34,722.00      43,724.00        9,002.00 

Drop In ‐ Youth 99.00                 5,049.00        5,247.00          198.00

15 Punch ‐ Adult 11,653.00         69,918.00      81,571.00        11,653.00                 

15 Punch ‐ Senior/Disabled 3,253.00           13,825.25      17,078.25        3,253.00 

15 Punch ‐ Youth 5,211.00           20,844.00      22,146.75        1,302.75 

Total projected New Revenue 33,886.75                

Estimated Increase in Hourly Rates (20,000.00)                

Total projected Net Income 13,886.75                

51



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: WEEKDAY CUSTODIAL FEE FOR FACILITY USE BY  
NON-AUSD USERS  

PREPARED BY: AMANDA MENDIETA, AQUATIC CENTER DIRECTOR AND 
FACILITY USE COORDINATOR,  AND  
JACKIE KIM, CHIEF BUSINESS OFFICIAL  

TYPE OF ITEM: REVIEW AND ACTION 
_________________________________________________________________________________ 

PURPOSE:  To Approve 10% Weekday Custodial Fee for Facility Use by Non-AUSD Users 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Both AUSD and Non-AUSD Facility Users are currently charged a weekend  event attendant and 
custodial clean up rate because a custodian must be staffed each weekend event. This scheduling is 
outside of normal school hours and outside of their normal work schedule. Community Users are 
charged $40/hr. for event attendant and $40/hr. (2hr minimum) for custodial clean up per event. AUSD 
facility users are charged a fee of $20/hr. for event attendant and $20/hr. (2hr minimum) for custodial 
clean up per event.  

Currently, AUSD and Non-AUSD Facility Users are not  charged a custodial fee for weekday  events. 
This decision was originally made because the event was within the custodian’s regularly scheduled 
shift.  However, the custodian still needs to clean the area, and AUSD is covering the cost of any extra 
supplies needed to maintain our facilities after these events. Many weekday facility users also interrupt 
the normal custodial schedule, and custodians often need to clean an area twice in one day.  

Staff is recommending a 10% custodial fee be charged to non-AUSD  users for weekday events. Facility 
use requests for January 2019 through June 2019 are approved by the District in late October. Upon 
approval of this fee increase, the new fee schedule will be implemented on January 1, 2019.  

52



DETAILS: Scenario of renting Ocean View Multipurpose Room for 2 hours: 

KEY QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS:  
Q. How much additional income are we expecting?  
A. We are expecting additional income of approximately $20,000 annually.  

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  Funding Source: Increase of $20,000 in General Fund annually. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional growth of 
all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify individual 
socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate interventions. 

Objective #3 : Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION: To Approve 10% Weekday Custodial Fee for Facility Use by Non-AUSD 
Users 

53



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: RESOLUTION NO. 2018-19-04: IN SUPPORT OF THE  
CITY OF ALBANY’S RESOLUTION DECLARING  
NOVEMBER 11-17 AS  “NO HATE WEEK” IN ALBANY 

PREPARED BY: VAL WILLIAMS, SUPERINTENDENT 

TYPE OF ITEM: REVIEW AND ACTION 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE: The Board of Trustees to review and approve the Resolution No. 2018-19-04: In Support of 
the City of Albany’s Resolution Declaring November 11-17 as “No Hate Week” in Albany 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  Mayor Peggy McQuaid has been working on the regional 
committee for No Hate Week, and she brought a resolution to the City Council on September 4, 2018 
declaring November 11-17 as “No Hate Week” in Albany. This resolution aligns with their strategic 
plan/goal 2.2A1 - Identify Outreach Strategies and Programs to Support Inclusivity.  

The Albany Unified School District’s strategic plan, goal #2 states that “We will foster the social and 
emotional growth of all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, 
identify individual socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate 
interventions.” The AUSD resolution supporting the City of Albany’s declaration of November 11-17 as 
“No Hate Week” supports our goal of providing a safe and healthy learning environment for all students. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION:  NONE 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1: Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a comprehensive 
educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, and academic growth 
so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional growth of 

54



all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify individual 
socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate interventions. 

Objective #3 : Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION: Approve Resolution No. 2018-19-04: In Support of the City of Albany’s 
Resolution Declaring November 11-17 as “No Hate Week” in Albany 

55



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT  
BOARD OF EDUCATION 

RESOLUTION NO. 2018-19-04:  
In Support of the City of Albany’s Declaration of November 11 – 17 as  

“No Hate Week in Albany”  

WHEREAS, since January 2017, there has been an alarming increase in fringe ideologies using 
hatred as a means of intimidation; and 

WHEREAS, numerous policy positions, from wanting to build a wall to most recently 
separating families at the border, combined with the actions and rhetoric of President Trump, 
have fueled the normalization of hateful and racist discourse; and 

WHEREAS, attacks on immigrants, Muslims, people of color, women, the LGBTQI 
community, and our most vulnerable are now commonplace, resulting in an uptick in hate crimes 
and the open promotion of xenophobic ideas; and 

WHEREAS, in response to the numerous events and to clearly state our shared values, Berkeley 
developed the Berkeley Stands United Against Hate campaign, which was adopted by the City of 
Albany as well as several other cities in the Bay Area, and served as a uniting and hopeful 
beacon amidst a challenging time, declaring our commitment to inclusivity; and 

WHEREAS, to further respond to the divide currently facing our nation, cities across the Bay 
Area are organizing a “No Hate Week” that will take place November 11-17, 2018;  

THEREFORE, the Albany Unified School District supports the City of Albany’s declaration of 
November 11 – 17 as “ No Hate Week in Albany”  and will support and encourage appropriate 
educational and community events. 

PASSED AND ADOPTED by the Governing Board of Education of the Albany Unified School 
District of the County of Alameda, this 25th day of September, 2018, by the following vote:  

AYES: 
NOES: 
ABSTAIN: ___________________________________ 
ABSENT: Clerk of the Board of Trustees  

Albany Unified School District 
Alameda County, California 

56



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: MASTER CONTRACT BETWEEN ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL 
           DISTRICT AND DISCOVERY ACADEMY 

PREPARED BY:        DIANE MARIE, DIRECTOR OF SPECIAL EDUCATION 

TYPE OF ITEM:       REVIEW AND ACTION 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE:  
Board of Trustees to review and ratify the Master Contract between Albany Unified School District and 
Discovery Academy. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:  
Discovery Academy is a residential treatment center that provides basic education and related services for 
students whose needs cannot be met in a public school setting. 

DETAILS: 
Discovery Academy will provide basic education, room and board and related services for a District student. 

    X        Standard Contract 
     Contract deviates from Standard Contract 

    X        New Contract 
     Renew Contract 

KEY QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS:  

Q.   Why is this contract being ratified? 
A.    The District needed to arrange placement in order to meet the student’s educational needs. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
Not to exceed $98,940.00  

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1 : Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a comprehensive 
educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, and academic growth 
so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #2 : Support the Whole Child.  Goal: We will foster the social and emotional growth of 
all students, implement an array of strategies to increase student engagement, identify individual 
socio-emotional and behavioral needs, and apply collaborative appropriate interventions. 

57



RECOMMENDATION: Ratify the Master Contract between the Albany Unified School District and            
Discovery Academy 

58



59



60



61



62



63



64



65



66



67



68



69



70



71



72



73



74



75



76



77



78



79



80



81



82



83



84



85



86



87



88



89



90



91



92



93



94



95



96



97



98



99



100



101



102



103



104



105



106



ALBANY UNIFIED SCHOOL DISTRICT 
BOARD AGENDA BACKUP 

Regular Meeting of September 25, 2018 

ITEM: PROVISIONAL INTERNSHIP PERMIT 

PREPARED BY:     CHERYL COTTON, DIRECTOR, HUMAN RESOURCES 

TYPE OF ITEM:   REVIEW AND ACTION 
__________________________________________________________________________________ 
PURPOSE: The purpose of this item is for the Board to approve the Provisional Internship Permit in 
Science: Biological Sciences. 

BACKGROUND INFORMATION:   
The Provisional Internship Permit, or PIP, allows an employing agency to fill an immediate staffing 
need by hiring an individual who has not yet met the subject matter competence requirement needed to 
enter an intern program. Holders of the PIP are restricted to service with the employing agency 
requesting the permit. 

To qualify for the PIP, the district must show that it has conducted a diligent search for a suitable 
credentialed teacher though job announcements, college and university contacts, and internet job 
advertisements. The district must also provide orientation, guidance and assistance during the valid 
period of the PIP to the permit holder. The Human Resources staff will continue to work with the permit 
holder to provide assistance in meeting subject-matter competence as needed and will apprise the 
individual of the steps required to earn a credential in California. 

DETAILS: 
Sarah Ward is being hired as a Biology Teacher serving 9th-12th grade students at Albany High School 
on a PIP. She was issued a PIP for the Oakland Unified School District by the Commission on Teacher 
Credentialing (CTC) on January 1, 2018. The PIP expires February 2, 2019. Per CTC regulation, this 
permit must be transferred to the current employing agency.  

In August 2018, Ms. Ward completed the Harvard Teacher Fellows Program which also includes her 
Masters in Education. She anticipates her degree will be conferred in November 2018. In 2016, she 
received her Bachelor of Arts degree in Molecular and Cellular Biology at Harvard College.  

KEY QUESTIONS AND ANSWERS:  
Q. Is a teacher who holds a PIP qualified to teach in California? 

107



A. Yes. A teacher is qualified to teach in California based on the PIP. Because Ms. Ward received a PIP 
for her work in OUSD, we must now apply for the PIP for Albany Unified School District. The PIP will 
be valid through the original expiration date of February 1, 2019. The PIP cannot be renewed. In Ms. 
Ward’s case, once her credential and Masters have been conferred, we will assist her in applying for her 
California teaching credential.  

Q. Why does the BOE need to approve a PIP if the candidate has completed a teacher credential 
program? 
A. Until degrees are conferred and all other credentialing requirements are met, we are unable to apply 
for a teaching credential. For candidates who completed their program in the summer, Harvard 
University will award degrees in November of the same year. A degree cannot be conferred until the 
diploma is awarded. 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION: 
None. 

STRATEGIC OBJECTIVES ADDRESSED: 

Objective #1: Assess and Increase Academic Success.  Goal: We will provide a comprehensive 
educational experience with expanded opportunities for engagement, assessment, and academic growth 
so that all students will achieve their fullest potential. 

Objective #3: Communicate and Lead Together.  Goal: All stakeholders will collaborate and 
communicate about decisions that guide the sites and district.  

RECOMMENDATION: APPROVE THE PROVISIONAL INTERNSHIP PERMIT IN SCIENCE: 
BIOLOGICAL SCIENCES 

108


	BOE 9.25.18 AGENDA
	G1a Minutes of the August 14, 2018 Regular Board Meeting draft to approve 9-25.18 FINAL
	G2a Certificated Personnel Assignment Order & Classified Personnel Assignment Order
	G3a Overnight Field Trip: Albany High School All-Choir Spring Tour in Anaheim, California
	K1a Staff Report Update on AHS New Addition Construction Project 9-25-18 FINAL
	STAFF REPORT on AHS NEW ADDITION CONSTRUCTION 9-25-18
	AHS Construction Update slides 9-25-18

	K2a Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment Patterns (9-25-2018 Final)
	9th Grade Mathematics Enrollment Patterns 09-25-2018.pdf
	Appendix A_ Albany USD BP 6152.1 Placement in Math (1).pdf
	Appendix B (1)_ Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment - 2016.pdf
	Appendix B(2)_ Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment - 2017.pdf
	Appendix B(3)_ Ninth Grade Mathematics Enrollment (as of 9.19.18) - 2018.pdf

	K3a Enrollment Update
	L1a Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix
	BU Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix 09-25-2018.pdf
	Albany Middle School Behavior Matrix.pdf

	M1a Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan 9-25-18 FINAL
	M1a BU - Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan 9.25.18 FINAL
	Exhibits - Albany Aquatic Center Fiscal Solvency Plan 9.25.18 (1)

	M1b Weekday Custodial Fee for Facility Use for Non-AUSD Users 9.25.18 FINAL
	M2a Resolution No. 2018-19-04- In Support of City of Albany Resolution Declaring November 11 – 17 as “No Hate Week in Albany” 9-25-18
	BU Resolution No. 2018-19-04 In Support of No Hate Week in Albany 9-25-18
	RESOLUTION NO. 2018-19-04_ In Support of No Hate Week 9-25-18

	M3a Master Contract between Albany Unified School District and Discovery Academy 9-25-18
	M3a Discovery Academy BU 9.25.18.docx 
	M3a Master Contract- Discovery Academy

	M4a Provisional Intership Permit



